

Dated February 2026

Manchester Central Convention Complex Limited

- and -

XXXXX (1)

(2)

SERVICES AGREEMENT





CONTENTS

Clause		Page	
1	Interpretation	3	
2	Services	4	
3	Service Provider Obligations	. 5	
4	Services quality and monitoring		
5	Access to the Premises	6	
6	Service Charges and payments	6	
7	Assignment and subcontracting		
8	Confidentiality	. 7	
9	Data Protection		
10	Anti-bribery	. 8	
11	Indemnity	9	
12	Insurance policies	9	
13	Limitation of liability	10	
14	Termination	10	
15	Waiver		
16	Cumulation of remedies	11	
17	Severability	11	
18	Variation	12	
19	Partnership, agency and tenancy		
20	Rights of set-off	12	
21	Third party rights	12	
22	Notices	12	
23	Entire agreement		
24	Announcements and publicity	13	
25	Governing law and jurisdiction	13	
26	Counterparts	13	
Sched	ule		
Schedule 1 (Services)			
Schedule 2 (Service Charges)			
	Schedule 3 (Policies)		



THIS AGREEMENT is dated

XXXX 2026

PARTIES

Manchester Central Convention Complex Limited, incorporated and registered in England and Wales with company number 00953285 whose registered office is at Windmill Street, Petersfield, Manchester, M2 3GX (**Manchester Central**)

XXXX], incorporated and registered in England and Wales with company number [XXXX] whose registered office is at [XXXX] (Service Provider).

BACKGROUND

- (A) Manchester Central is the owner and operator of an events and exhibitions complex which provides facilities to third parties for the holding of events, conferences and exhibitions.
- (B) Manchester Central wishes to receive from the Service Provider the Services (as defined below) and the Service Provider hereby agrees to provide the Services on the terms and conditions of this agreement.

AGREED TERMS

1 Interpretation

1.1 In this agreement (which expression includes the recitals, the schedules and any attachments hereto) the following words and phrases shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings:

Business Day: a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public or bank holiday in England and/or Wales.

Commencement Date: the date from which the Service Provider will commence provision of the Services, being 1st February 2026.

End Date: 31st January 2028 or such other date of termination or expiry, if the agreement is terminated early in accordance with its terms.

Month: a calendar month.

Personnel: all employees, staff, other workers, agents and consultants of the Service Provider and of any sub-contractors who are engaged in the provision of the Services from time to time.

Premises: Manchester Central's events and exhibition complex at Windmill Street, Petersfield, Manchester, M2 3GX, Junction, Town Hall Central Library, Runway Visitors Park and any other associated sites.

Service Charges: the charges levied by the Service Provider in accordance with the tariffs, scales, charges, invoicing methods and terms of payment set out in this agreement and Schedule 2 (as varied from time to time).

Services: the services described in Schedule 1 (Services) together with any ancillary services to be provided by the Service Provider to Manchester Central in accordance with the provisions of this agreement (as varied from time to time).

Target Performance Standards: means any and all target performance standards as may be detailed in Schedule 1 from time to time upon signed written agreement of the parties.

Timescales: means any and all target timescales for performance of the Services as may be detailed in Schedule 1 from time to time upon signed written agreement of the parties.

VAT: value added tax.

Year: any successive period of 12 months measured from the Commencement Date or any anniversary of the Commencement Date.

- 1.2 The headings in this agreement do not affect its interpretation. Save where the context otherwise requires, references to sub-clauses, clauses and schedules are to sub-clauses, clauses and schedules of this agreement.
- 1.3 Unless the context otherwise requires:
 - (a) references to Manchester Central and the Service Provider include their permitted successors and assigns;
 - (b) references to statutory provisions include those statutory provisions as amended or re-enacted; and
 - (c) references to any gender include all genders and use of the singular includes the plural and vice versa.
- 1.4 In the case of conflict or ambiguity between any provision contained in the body of this agreement and any provision contained in any schedule, the provision in the body of this agreement shall take precedence.
- 1.5 A person includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body (whether or not having separate legal personality).
- 1.6 Any words following the terms **including**, **include**, **in particular** or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words, description, definition, phrase or term preceding those terms.

2 Services

The Service Provider will provide the Services to Manchester Central with effect from the Commencement Date until the End Date and in accordance with the provisions of this agreement.

The Service Provider shall, at its own cost, provide all necessary Personnel, equipment and other resources to provide the services in accordance with this agreement.



3 Service Provider Obligations

- 3.1 The Service Provider shall, and shall (where applicable) procure that its Personnel shall:
 - co-operate with Manchester Central and comply with all reasonable and lawful instructions of Manchester Central in all matters relating to the Services;
 - (b) use its best endeavours to achieve any applicable Timescales and Target Performance Standards;
 - (c) use only Personnel who possess a degree of skill, training and experience which is appropriate to the tasks to which they are allotted;
 - (d) provide all equipment necessary to provide the Services and ensure that all equipment used is to the standard, quality, condition and quality as would reasonably be expected to be used by a professional and experienced provider of services of a nature similar to the Services;
 - (e) provide the Services with reasonable skill and care, in a workmanlike and professional manner and in accordance with the best practice prevailing in the relevant industry from time to time. Where an appropriate British standard specification or British standard code of practice issued by the British Standards Institute is applicable, all goods or equipment used and all workmanship shall, as a minimum requirement, be in accordance with that standard and the equivalent European standard, without prejudice to any higher standard required by this agreement;
 - (f) provide the Services in compliance with all relevant legislation, regulations, codes of practice, guidance and other requirements of any relevant government or governmental agency, including but not limited to, all statutory requirements relating to health and safety at work;
 - (g) comply, to the extent that such are relevant, with Manchester Central's policies, rules, procedures and standards listed in Schedule 3 (Policies) and all other policies, rules, procedures and standards of Manchester Central which apply to persons permitted access to Manchester Central's premises, in each case as the same are in force from time to time and are notified to the Service Provider; and
 - (h) implement and maintain a properly documented system of quality control and quality assurance in respect of the Services or alternatively, at Manchester Central's sole discretion, the Service Provider shall implement and maintain the quality control and quality assurance systems as notified to the Service Provider from time to time.

4 Services quality and monitoring

4.1 The Service Provider shall provide to Manchester Central such reports as Manchester Central may reasonably require in relation to the performance of the



- Services, including in relation to the attainment of any Target Performance Standards and Timescales.
- 4.2 The Service Provider shall, at its own expense, take such remedial action as is necessary to rectify any deficiency in its performance, within such timescales as may be reasonably required by Manchester Central.
- 4.3 If the Service Provider fails to carry out remedial action to the reasonable satisfaction of Manchester Central in accordance with clause 4.2, the Service Provider shall be deemed to have committed an irremediable breach of this agreement which shall entitle which Manchester Central to terminate this agreement with immediate effect under clause 14.3(b).

5 Access to the Premises

- 5.1 Manchester Central shall allow persons, duly authorised by the Service Provider, such access to the Premises as is reasonably required for the purpose of providing the Services.
- 5.2 The Service Provider shall ensure that its Personnel access only those areas of the Premises which are reasonably required for the purpose of providing the Services and use the Premises for the sole purpose of providing the Services.
- 5.3 Authorisation and access procedures will be agreed between Manchester Central and the Service Provider from time to time. The Service Provider's right of access will terminate upon termination of this agreement.
- 5.4 The Service Provider be responsible for the safekeeping of any keys, passes and other means of access provided to the Service Provider by Manchester Central and shall only permit such keys, passes and other means of access to be given to those of the Service Provider's Personnel whose names have been supplied to Manchester Central and then only to the extent required for purposes associated with this agreement. In addition, the Service Provider shall ensure that Manchester Central is informed immediately of the loss of any keys, passes or other means of access and shall reimburse to Manchester Central any cost of replacement.
- 5.5 Manchester Central shall, at its sole discretion, be entitled to require the Service Provider, to immediately remove any Personnel from the provision of the Services and/or the Premises.
- 5.6 Manchester Central shall not be liable either to the Service Provider or any Personnel in respect of any liability, loss or damage arising out of the removal of any Personnel and the Service Provider shall fully indemnify Manchester Central against all and any liabilities suffered by Manchester Central arising out of or in connection with any action taken under this clause 5.6.

6 Service Charges and payments

6.1 In consideration of the provision of the Services by the Service Provider, Manchester Central shall pay to the Service Provider the Service Charges.



- 6.2 On or after the last day of each Month (but before the last day of the following Month) the Service Provider shall submit to Manchester Central a VAT invoice correctly rendered, together with all necessary substantiating documentation and a valid Purchase Order reference number, which is reasonably required by Manchester Central, in relation to the Services provided in that Month.
- 6.3 Manchester Central shall pay such invoices within 30 days from the end of the Month of invoice subject to the invoice and all necessary substantiating documentation (as referred to in clause 6.2) having been received by Manchester Central within 7 days after the end of the Month of invoice.
- 6.4 All Service Charges and payments to be made by Manchester Central under this agreement are stated exclusive of VAT which shall be paid by Manchester Central at the rate and from time to time in the manner prescribed by law.
- 6.5 If any sum payable under this agreement is not paid within 15 days of the date due, the party to whom the same is due reserves the right to charge interest from the date due for payment to the actual date of payment at the rate of 3% above the base rate of HSBC from time to time in force.
- 6.6 The Service Charges and such other amounts expressed to be payable by Manchester Central under this agreement shall constitute Manchester Central's entire payment liability to the service Provider under this agreement.
- 6.7 The Service Provider shall at all times during this agreement use all reasonable endeavours to identify potential cost savings relevant to the provision of the Services (including, without limitation, reductions in labour rates or by sourcing equipment from suppliers with competitive rates) without compromising quality and to share the benefit of such cost savings with Manchester Central on an equitable basis.

7 Assignment and subcontracting

- 7.1 Manchester Central may at any time assign, transfer, mortgage, charge, subcontract or deal in any other manner with all or any of its rights or obligations under this agreement.
- 7.2 The Service Provider shall not be entitled to assign, transfer, mortgage, charge, subcontract, declare a trust over or deal in any other manner with all or any of its rights or obligations under this agreement without the prior written consent of Manchester Central.
- 7.3 The Service Provider shall not subcontract the whole or any part of its obligations under this agreement without the express prior written consent of Manchester. Sub-contracting will only be permitted subject to any conditions reasonably required by Manchester Central and shall not relieve the Service Provider of any of its obligations under this agreement.

8 Confidentiality

8.1 Except as required by law, both parties shall procure that all confidential information disclosed by one party to the other in accordance with this agreement

or which may at any time until termination of this agreement come into the other party's knowledge, possession or control shall not be used for any purposes other than those required or permitted by this agreement and shall remain confidential and shall not be disclosed to any third party except insofar as this may be required for the proper operation of this agreement and then only under appropriate confidentiality provisions approved by the other party. For the purposes of this agreement information relating to business, affairs, operations, clients, customers, processes, budgets, pricing policies, product information, strategies, developments, trade secrets, know-how, personnel and suppliers of the disclosing party or its clients are hereby deemed to be confidential information. These obligations of confidentiality shall cease to apply to any particular item of confidential information once it becomes public knowledge other than by any act or default of either party.

8.2 Without prejudice to the Service Provider's obligations under this clause 8, the Service Provider shall procure that each of its Personnel involved in the provision of the Services under this agreement to whom the Service Provider discloses confidential information that has been disclosed to it by Manchester Central shall comply with and shall enter confidentiality obligations that are equivalent to those in this clause 8.

9 Data Protection

- 9.1 To the extent that any personal data (within the meaning of the Data Protection Act 1998) belonging to Manchester Central comes into the possession or control of the Service Provider in the course of providing the Services, the Service Provider:
 - (a) shall process such data and information only in accordance with Manchester Central's instructions;
 - (b) shall not transmit such data and information to a country or territory outside the European Economic Area without Manchester Central's express consent; and
 - (c) shall take such technical and organisational measures against unauthorised or unlawful processing of such data and information and against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, such data and information as are appropriate to Manchester Central as data controller.

10 Anti-bribery

- 10.1 The Service Provider shall (and shall ensure that its Personnel shall) comply with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations and codes relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010.
- 10.2 The Service Provider shall not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK.
- 10.3 Breach of this clause 10 shall be deemed a breach of a material obligation under clause 14.3(a).

11 Indemnity

- 11.1 To the extent permitted by law, Manchester Central excludes any liability for any injury to persons entering the Premises with the Service Provider's authorisation or for any loss or damage caused to property brought onto the Premises by the Service Provider or such persons. The Service Provider hereby indemnifies Manchester Central against all and any damage to the Premises and its contents caused by persons entering the Premises with the Service Provider's authorisation.
- 11.2 The Service Provider shall indemnify Manchester Central in full for and against all compensation, costs, expenses or liabilities whatsoever, whenever and howsoever arising incurred or suffered by Manchester Central including without limitation all legal expenses and other professional fees together with any VAT thereon in relation to any claim made against Manchester Central in respect of any liability, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense sustained by Manchester Central's employees or agents or by any client or third party to the extent that such liability, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense was caused by, relates to or arises from the provision of the Services as a consequence of a breach or negligent performance or failure or delay in performance of this agreement by the Service Provider, its officers or employees, or its sub-contractors.

12 Insurance policies

- 12.1 The Service Provider shall maintain in force the following insurance policies:
 - (a) Public Liability Insurance Policy limit £5 Million per claim and without limit as to the number of claims in any period; and
 - (b) Employers Liability Insurance Policy limit £5 Million per claim,

and shall ensure that the appropriate noting of Manchester Central's interest has been recorded on the policies or a generic interest clause has been included and shall on the written request of Manchester Central from time to time provide Manchester Central with copies. On the renewal of each policy, the Service Provider shall promptly send a copy of the premium receipt to Manchester Central.

- 12.2 The Service Provider shall, during the term of this agreement, and for a period of one year thereafter:
 - (a) administer the insurance policies and the Service Provider's relationship with its insurers at all times to preserve the benefits for Manchester Central set out in this agreement;
 - (b) do nothing to invalidate any such insurance policy or to prejudice Manchester Central's entitlement thereunder; and
 - (c) procure that the terms of such policies shall not be altered in such a way as to diminish the benefit to Manchester Central of the policies as provided at the Commencement Date.

13 Limitation of liability

- 13.1 Subject to clause 13.3, the liability of each party under or in connection with this agreement, whether arising from contract, negligence or otherwise, shall be limited as follows:
 - (a) for loss of or damage to physical property, the limit for any one or series of connected events shall be £1 Million;
 - (b) for any other liability, the aggregate liability shall be £1 Million in each Year
- 13.2 Subject to clause 13.3, neither party shall be liable for any indirect or consequential loss.
- 13.3 Neither party limits its liability:
 - (a) for death or personal injury caused by its negligence, or that of its employees, agents or sub-contractors;
 - (b) for fraud by it or its employees;
 - (c) for any other act or omission, liability for which may not be limited by law;
 - (d) under any indemnity in this agreement.

14 Termination

- 14.1 Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, Manchester Central may, without liability to the Service Provider, terminate this agreement at any time by giving three (3) months' written notice to the Service Provider.
- 14.2 Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, this agreement may be terminated by Manchester Central with immediate effect by giving written notice to the Service Provider, in the following circumstances:
 - (a) if there is a change of control (as defined in section 1124 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the Service Provider to which Manchester Central reasonably objects; and/or
 - (b) if Manchester Central considers that the continuation of this agreement will cause it, or is reasonably deemed likely to cause it, to suffer reputational damage.
- 14.3 Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, this agreement may be terminated by either party, with immediate effect from service on the other of written notice, in the following circumstances:
 - upon a breach of any material obligation under this agreement which, if capable of remedy, has not been remedied by the party in breach within 28 days of receipt of notice so to do;



- (b) upon a breach of any material obligation under this agreement which is incapable of remedy;
- (c) if a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding up of the other (otherwise than for the purpose of solvent amalgamation or reconstruction) or the other becomes subject to an administration order or a receiver or administrative receiver is appointed over or an encumbrancer takes possession of any of the other's property or equipment; and/or
- (d) if the other party ceases or threatens to cease to carry on business in the United Kingdom.
- 14.4 If this agreement is terminated by Manchester Central in accordance with clauses 14.2 or 14.3 such termination shall be at no loss or cost to Manchester Central and the Service Provider hereby indemnifies Manchester Central against any such losses or costs which Manchester Central may suffer as a result of any such termination for cause.
- 14.5 On termination of this agreement, any clauses that expressly or by implication are intended to survive termination shall continue in force.
- 14.6 Termination of this agreement shall not affect any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities of the Parties that have accrued up to the date of termination, including the right to claim damages in respect of any breach of the agreement which existed at or before the date of termination.

15 Waiver

No failure or delay by a party to exercise any right or remedy provided under this agreement or by law shall constitute a waiver of that or any other right or remedy, nor shall it prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy. No single or partial exercise of such right or remedy shall prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy.

16 Cumulation of remedies

Subject to the specific limitations set out in this agreement, no remedy conferred by any provision of this agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy except as expressly provided for in this agreement and each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given thereunder or existing at law or in equity by statute or otherwise.

17 Severability

If any provision or part-provision of this agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed to be modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not possible, the relevant provision or part-provision shall be deemed deleted. Any modification to or deletion of a provision or part-provision under this clause shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the rest of this agreement.



18 Variation

No variation of this agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by both of the parties (or their authorised representatives).

19 Partnership, agency and tenancy

Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as constituting a partnership between the parties or as constituting either party as the agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever except as specified by the terms of this agreement.

20 Rights of set-off

If any sums are due to Manchester Central from the Service Provider, Manchester Central shall be entitled to exercise the right to set-off such sums against any Service Charges due to the Service Provider in relation to this agreement.

21 Third party rights

No term of this agreement is intended to confer a benefit on or to be enforceable by, any person who is not a party to this agreement.

22 Notices

- 22.1 Notices shall be in writing, and shall be sent to the relevant party at the address set out for such party in clause 22.3, or such other address as may be notified to the other party in accordance with this clause 22.
- 22.2 Notices may be sent by first-class mail or facsimile transmission or email provided that facsimile transmissions and emails are confirmed within 24 hours by first-class mailed confirmation of a copy. Correctly addressed notices sent by first-class mail shall be deemed to have been delivered 72 hours after posting and correctly directed facsimile transmissions and emails shall be deemed to have been received instantaneously on transmission provided that they are confirmed as set out above.
- 22.3 The address for service, as referred to in clause 22.1, is:
 - (a) To Manchester Central:

Windmill Street, Petersfield, Manchester, M2 3GX

Fax: N/A

Email: Procurement@manchestercentral.co.uk

FAO: Procurement Team and whom it may concern

(b) To the Service Provider:

[insert address]



Fax: [insert fax number]

Email: [insert email address]

FAO: [insert addressee details]

23 Entire agreement

- 23.1 This agreement and any documents referred to in it constitute the whole agreement between the parties and supersede any previous arrangement, understanding or agreement between them relating to the subject matter of this agreement.
- 23.2 Each party acknowledges that, in entering into this agreement, it does not rely on any statement, representation, assurance or warranty (Representation) of any person (whether a party to this agreement or not) other than as expressly set out in this agreement.

24 Announcements and publicity

The Service Provider shall not make, or permit any person to make, any public announcement concerning this agreement without the prior written consent of Manchester Central (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), except as required by law, any governmental or regulatory activity (including, without limitation, any relevant securities exchange), any court or other authority of competent jurisdiction.

25 Governing law and jurisdiction

This agreement and any disputes or claims arising out of or in connection with it, its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law and submitted to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the English Courts.

26 Counterparts

This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall constitute an original of this agreement, but all the counterparts shall together constitute the same agreement. No counterpart shall be effective until each party has executed at least one counterpart.

This agreement has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of it.



Schedule 1 (Services)

The Supplier shall be responsible for the supply and delivery of soft drinks and related non-alcoholic beverages to Manchester Central and all other associated sites. This shall include:

- a) Provision of an agreed range of soft drink products (including but not limited to carbonated drinks, still drinks, flavoured waters, and juices);
- b) Delivery to the Centre's designated storage or service areas in accordance with the delivery schedule agreed between the parties;
- c) Maintenance of product quality, freshness, and compliance with all relevant food safety and labelling regulations; and
- d) Replacement of any damaged, defective, or expired goods at no additional cost to the Client.

The Supplier shall ensure that:

- a) the Goods are properly packed and secured in such manner as to enable them to reach their destination in good condition;
- b) each delivery of the Goods is accompanied by a delivery note which shows the date of the Order, the Order number (if any), the type and quantity of the Goods (including the code number of the Goods, where applicable), special storage instructions (if any) and, if the Goods are being delivered by instalments, the outstanding balance of Goods remaining to be delivered; and
- c) if the Supplier requires the Customer to return any packaging material to the Supplier, that fact is clearly stated on the delivery note. Any such packaging material shall be returned to the Supplier at the cost of the Supplier.

The Supplier shall deliver the Goods:

- a) on the date specified in the Order. If an order is received where no date is specified, the Supplier must obtain such date from the Customer before providing written acceptance of order;
- b) to the Customer's premises at Manchester Central Convention Complex, Petersfield, Manchester, M2 3GX or such other location as is set out in the Order, or as instructed by the Customer prior to delivery (Delivery Location); and
- c) between 07:00am and 13:00pm, Monday to Sunday.
- d) Up to 10% of an order may be returned with agreement from both supplier and customer, on large one-off orders only.

Delivery of the Goods shall be completed on the completion of unloading the Goods at the Delivery Location.



If the Supplier delivers significantly more or less than the quantity of Goods ordered, the Customer may at its discretion reject the Goods or (where applicable) the excess Goods, and any rejected Goods shall be returnable at the Supplier's risk and expense. If the Supplier delivers more or less than the quantity of Goods ordered, and the Customer accepts the delivery, a pro rata adjustment shall be made to the invoice for the Goods.

Where the Supplier delivers less than the quantity of Goods ordered the Supplier must, unless directly instructed in writing by the Customer, use best endeavours to deliver the remainder of the Goods ordered before the end of the Delivery Date. This is at the Supplier's sole expense.

The Supplier shall not deliver the Goods in instalments without the Customer's prior written consent.

The Supplier shall perform the Services in a professional and timely manner to ensure consistent availability of stock for events and operations held at the Manchester Central and all associated sites.



Schedule 2 (Service Charges)

Prices will remain firm from the date of commencement of the Contract. Increased prices will be proposed to Manchester Central and only upon acceptance by Manchester Central, the Contractor shall implement such price changes.

Invoices should not be submitted for the revised prices until written acceptance of the price increase from either the Chief Financial Officer or Head of Hospitality via the procurement@manchestercentral.co.uk email address has been received.

[Please insert details of the relevant charges for the Services]



Schedule 3 (Policies)

- Health and Safety Policy
- Sustainability PolicyEquality & Diversity PolicyModern Slavery Policy



	Signed for and on behalf of
	MANCHESTER CENTRAL
	CONVENTION COMPLEX
	LIMITED
	by <mark>[name]</mark>
	,
	Director
S	igned for and on behalf of
	nsert SERVICE PROVIDER
	y <mark>[name]</mark>
	virector
ט	NI COLOI